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Notes to the Accounts

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

1.

China Everbright Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated

in Hong Kong with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited. The directors of the Company

consider China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, a

company incorporated in Hong Kong, to be the ultimate

holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and,

through its subsidiaries and associates, is principally

engaged in investment holding and provision of financial

services.

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation

of the accounts are set out below:

(a)

Basis of presentation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in

Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards

issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants

(“HKSA”). They have been prepared under the

historical cost convention except that, as disclosed

in the accounting policies below, properties and

investments in securities are stated at fair value.

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) adopted the following

Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
(“SSAP”) issued by the HKSA which are effective for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1st

January 2002:

SSAP 1 (revised)

SSAP 11 (revised)

SSAP 15 (revised)

SSAP 34 (revised)

Presentation of financial
statements
Foreign currency translation

Cash flow statements

Employee benefits
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2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of presentation (Continued)

The adoption of the above SSAPs does not have

material impact on the accounts of the Group other

than presentational changes.

Group accounting

(1)

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, controls the
composition of the board of directors, controls
more than half the voting power or holds more
than half of the issued share capital.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated profit and loss account from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary represents the difference between
the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any
unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill or
goodwill/negative goodwill taken to reserves
and which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Group accounting (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account
includes the Group’s share of the results of
jointly controlled entity for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entity and goodwill/negative
goodwill (net of accumulated amortisation) on
acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investment in jointly controlled entity is stated
at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of jointly controlled entity are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.
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2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Group accounting (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, in
which an equity interest is held for the long-
term and significant influence is exercised in
its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account
includes the Group’s share of the results of
and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates and goodwill/ negative goodwill

the associates for the year,

(net of accumulated amortisation) on
acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in associates are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the
carrying amount of the investment in an
associate reaches zero, unless the Group has
incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations
in respect of the associate.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at
the balance sheet date are translated at rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising in these cases

are dealt with in the profit and loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Group accounting (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The balance sheet of subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity and associates expressed in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the profit and loss is translated at an
average rate. Exchange differences are dealt
with as a movement in reserves.

(c) Intangible assets

(1)

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired
subsidiary/ joint venture/ associate at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions occurring on or after
1st January 2001 is included in intangible
assets and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is amortised using the
straight-line method over its estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior
to 1st January 2001 was eliminated against
reserves. Any impairment arising on such
goodwill is accounted for in the consolidated
profit and loss account.
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2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Trading rights

The trading rights of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited are recognised as intangible
assets on the balance sheet. The trading
rights allocated on 6th March 2000, the
effective day of the merger of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and Hong Kong
Securities and Clearing Corporation Limited,
were stated at nominal value of HK$1 each.
Trading right subsequently acquired was
stated at amortised cost less any provision
for impairment in value, where appropriate.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight line
basis at an annual rate of 20%.

Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of any intangible asset,
including goodwill previously written off against
reserves, is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

(d) Fixed assets

(1)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings in respect of which construction
work and development have been completed
and which are held for their investment
potential, any rental income being negotiated
at arm’s length.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Fixed assets (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are valued every year
by an independent valuer. The valuations are
on an open market value basis related to
individual properties and separate values are
not attributed to land and buildings. The
valuations are incorporated in the annual
accounts. Increases in valuation are credited
to the asset revaluation reserve. Decreases in
valuation are first set off against increases on
earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and
thereafter are debited to the profit and loss
account. Any subsequent increases are
credited to the profit and loss account up to
the amount previously debited.

Upon the disposal of an investment property,
the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the asset revaluation reserve to
the profit and loss account.

Other properties

Other properties are interests in land and
buildings other than investment properties and
are valued every year by an independent
valuer. The valuations are on an open market
basis related to individual properties and
separate values are not attributed to land and
buildings. Increases in valuation are credited
to the asset revaluation reserve. Decreases in
valuation are first offset against increases on
earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and are thereafter debited to the
profit and loss account. Any subsequent
increases are credited to the profit and loss
account up to the amount previously debited.
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2. FEEFEEWE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Fixed assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets, comprising leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures, equipment
and motor vehicles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation

Investment properties held on leases with
unexpired periods of 20 years or less are
depreciated over the remaining portion of the
leases.

Leasehold land of other properties is
depreciated over the period of the lease while
other fixed assets are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of
the term of the
lease, or 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets
to their normal working condition are charged
to the profit and loss account. Improvements
are capitalised and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Fixed assets (Continued)

(v)

Impairment and gain or loss on sale

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external sources of information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
fixed assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account except where the asset is
carried at valuation and the impairment loss
does not exceed the revaluation surplus for
that same asset, in which case it is treated
as a revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset
other than investment properties is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and
is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Any revaluation reserve balance remaining
attributable to the relevant asset is transferred
to retained earnings and is shown as a
movement in reserves.
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2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are

accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable

to such operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
lease periods.

Investments in securities

(1)

Non-trading securities

Investments which are held for non-trading
purpose are stated at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Fair value represents the quoted
market price for securities that are actively
traded in a liquid market. For securities which
are not actively traded or are unlisted, fair
value is estimated by way of various pricing
techniques including discounted cash flow and
dividend yield analysis.

Changes in fair value of non-trading securities
are recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve until the security is sold, or is
determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss representing the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant security,
together with any surplus/deficit transferred
from the investment revaluation reserve, is
dealt with in the profit and loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Investments in securities (Continued)

(ii) Trading securities

Trading securities are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value of trading securities are
recognised in the profit and loss account as
they arise. Gain or loss on disposal of trading
securities, representing the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss
account as they arise.

Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of
such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with a maturity of three months or less
from date of investment and bank overdrafts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Where the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to annual leave, sick
leave and maternity leave are recognised when
the absences occur.

(i) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

Bonus plans (Continued)

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution schemes,
the assets of which are held in separate
trustee — administered funds. These pension
schemes are funded by payments from
employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory
provident fund scheme and the defined
contribution schemes are expensed as
incurred. Contributions to the defined
contribution schemes forfeited in respect of
those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions is
recognised as other revenues in the profit and
loss account.

Share options

The Group operates share option schemes
where directors or employees are granted with
options to acquire shares of the Company at
specified exercise price. No compensation
cost is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Trust accounts

Trust accounts maintained by the Group to hold
clients’ monies in the ordinary course of business of
dealing in securities, futures and leveraged foreign
exchange are no longer recognised in the accounts
but are treated as off balance sheet items and
disclosed in the accounts. The effect of this change
is that amounts previously recognised as “bank
balances and cash — trust accounts” and “receivable
from clearing house” on the balance sheet are de-
recognised and netted off against the corresponding
amounts classified under “trade payables”.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current
taxation rate in respect of timing differences between
profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit
as stated in the accounts to the extent that a liability
or an asset is expected to be payable or recoverable
in the foreseeable future.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

(k)

)

(m)

RS

AEBEERARPTPRERES
HERNMNEEBEZEFEE
AYMREZEFPRANE
JIMRE A -MEIEREER
BERIABERBPRE-Z
HENTESUNEEER
BERERARIRTEHRIRE
—fERFP O EYEEMR
REIWIEB REFBRER
I B[R] HEN
& BRI °

i 3E IR

A FE IR Y I 8 B R R 1 AT
BZRBNERB AR AT
—ERzEE REEHARA
BASRZMHAIKEZE
BEREEMBRRITHEAE

FREERIAREE

ZRBBEEEACBEENEMH
mAEsSIEzEE HEERE
FERAR —FRAEZREHESD
HAETREER MAKEL T
ETEEMNEERREMFS
BER-IRBENAERNR
ERLENEHSIBRZEAER
T ERRA TR EHERL
BERER B EARER S
wEHEMmMARE AR

FRABETERER BEE
FREMEFRE - REBRE
TR I REME B B BRI BE
BERHEFE I 5 B B 5
MR-
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises
from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Turnover

Tumover represents the aggregate of investment
returns from trading securities, interest income,
dividend
commission and service income.

income, rental income, brokerage

Revenue recognition

Brokerage commission and realised gains and losses
from disposal of trading and non-trading securities
are recognised in the profit and loss account on a
trade date basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.

Unrealised gains and losses on trading securities
are recognised in the profit and loss account on any
change in fair values of trading securities.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.

FTESTHEE (8

(m)

(n)

(0)

FREERAREE (B)

IREEERNDBENFMH
MARRELEZEE WEEE
FRR—FRIEZREHED
BLETRER MAKEIL T
EEEE2ENELEREEMFE

BER-

LEBRERERAFRIBHFZ
BREDR FE WA KRB
A HERARELME ER
BUA -

W 25 7 2R

KeBeRhREHEXZESH
RGEBELFEECEERR
MAEE RBEBRXSHMIT
R EXSAEEREBRERA
MR

EEBAELZRERAT
NEBRZPES 2 ATE
5 85 50 1825 R R

MEBERARBRERERES R
N3 M) 2 122 B R E ) 2R

i B A B B 2 #E A

T E B E AR ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BER-—TT—F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. FESFHEEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis.

Service income is recognised when the related
service is provided.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit
and loss account in the year in which they are
incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical as the secondary reporting
format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of intangible assets,
fixed assets, investments in securities, receivables
and operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as
taxation and certain corporate borrowings. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to intangible assets
and fixed assets, including additions resulting from
acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries. In
respect of geographical segment reporting, revenues
are based on the country in which the operating
activities are carried out. Segment assets and capital
expenditure are where the assets are located.

(0)

(p)

(a)

R (&)

REHEZHSBARER
EFER

AR 75 W AT B2 414 4 R AR 75 B

BERE

NEZREBE EREx4EEX
HEE (MBEELBEBRER
B EHIAETRE R
E)BBEZBEXRN HER
EREEZRDRA-

PrEEMEEXRANGREL
FEANEEBRIH-

TEBE

WA B 2 W s
AEBEREREBOEE
HEREENBHME MR
DHEMAESRBEAZ
5] o

AOEKAIE R B EE R
NoNHEETEBRRENE
EBEEE EFIRE R
WHRBEREERE DHRAE
ERERE TR KR
BRETEBERMEZER
FHEE-EAERXBREA
BERVEENBEEEENER.
ETEEEKENREQRM
NBEZBEE -ERHED BR
FHERDRREXTIHM
ENBERAE - DREERE
AR IR E EMEMAT &
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

3. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUES 3.

The Company is an investment holding company and,
through its subsidiaries and associates, is principally
engaged in investment holding and provision of financial
services. Turnover and other revenues recognised during

R E A H WA

ARAB BT EER AT 55 8 EH
BRI RBERA] EEREZERR
RS BIRS NFE IR 2 & RE
HEMUHENT

the year are as follows:

2002 2001
—EE-F —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT B F T
Turnover R
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of trading HERSGEHCER
securities (8BX) xR (43,710) 55,488
Net unrealised loss on trading securities REY5FEHIZARBRIBK
H HE (55,023) (24,965)
Interest income R B U A
- bank deposits —RITFER 10,010 70,935
— advances to customers —EFER 11,280 4,132
— others —Hfb 3,419 4,628
Dividend income % 8 0 A
— listed investments —FmRE 8,189 5,360
- unlisted investments —JFEMEKRE 3,658 =
Gross rental income from investment REREMEMRS
properties FENL N 1,916 2,155
Brokerage commission and £ 42 A 2 B AR 7S A
service income 58,601 41,403
_______ (1,660) 199,136
Other revenues Hfth g A
Net gain on disposal of non-trading securities & 3E3 5 & H 2 Wz
AR 56,933 60,598
Recovery of doubtful debts previously U B 7 F 2 5E 8 2 R IR
written off 1,046 983
Revaluation deficit of fixed assets BoEEEEEMGHRE
written back - 18
Gain on disposal of an associate o B N B 25 A 25,805 =
Compensation from legal claim (note 30(a))  =RFABEE (H77230(a)) - 270,918
Exchange gain, net VE H s F B 6,410 =
Others H 1,213 3,184
...91407 335,996
Total revenues BN 89,747 495,132
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For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE—_TTE—GF+-_A=+—HIFE

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

4.

Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging the following:

Depreciation on owned assets

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Revaluation deficit on fixed assets

Amortisation of goodwill

Amortisation of trading rights

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on trading rights

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented equipments

Auditors’ remuneration

Exchange loss, net

Provision for impairment in value of
non-trading securities

Provision and write-off of bad and
doubtful debts

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on bank loans
and overdrafts

Interest expenses to ultimate holding

company (note 27(b))

HEBRTEEENE
HEBREEERR
EBEEEERE
Bk §i

32 5 W 5
&R B

R ZHERE
THREFEE
HEHES
BaEREEE
HEHS

1% AT B &

PE IR RIF R
HERFEF

W E R

R I B 7 g S W B

RITERREBEX
ZHE
REER DA ER

FE (KizF27(b)

reg (BR) BF

e (BB BRNEMR TIEE :

2002 2001

—22-F —FF—F

HK$000 HK$°000

BEFT BETT

6,523 8,109

414 -

20,545 8,236

13,200 3,300

490 -

- 13,728

960 -

4,709 5,124

161 206

1,160 1,734

- 5,210

- 1,743

7,855 -
MBRB

2002 2001

—FF=F —ET—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

3,919 77

9,897 12,548

13,816 12,625
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For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 6.
EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Details of directors’ emoluments pursuant to Section

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are

set out below:

Fees for executive directors
Fees for non-executive directors
Other emoluments for executive
directors
— Basic salaries and allowances
— Bonus
— Benefits in kind (i)
Other emoluments for non-executive
directors
— Benefits in kind (i)
— Others

EERBEEMECEBAENE
&
(a) EE=MS

KRB EARMEGIFE161F2
ExMeFwmT:

2002 2001

—EEC-F —ET—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

WITESHESD 756 770

FENITESHS 300 200
BITESFZ
Hii &

—EXRF e RER 7,398 8,928

—JE4T 1,400 712

— B WA #() 74 12,092

FEHITEEZ

Hiti &

— B WA #() - 387

—HAth - 116

9,928 23,205
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 6. EERBEMECEBAEN
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) < (&)
(@)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEME (B

The emoluments of the directors analysed by the

number of directors and emolument ranges were as

follows:

Executive directors

- HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

- HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
- HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
- HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
- HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
- HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
- HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

Non-executive directors
- HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

HITES

—BEZ T E 1,000,000

— 1,000,001 70 2 75 ¥ 1,500,0007T
— % %1,500,001 7t & /% %2,000,0007T
— % #2,000,001 70 2 75 ¥ 2,500,0007T
— 3,000,001 70 2 7 ¥ 3,500,0007T
— % #5,500,001 7t & /% %6,000,0007T
— 717,000,001t & % %7,500,0007T

EHITEER
—BEZ L2 H%1,000,0007T

No directors waived the right to receive emoluments

during the year.

The above analysis has taken into account the

aggregate benefits realised by the directors on the

exercise of share options as disclosed in note (i)

below.

BEZEABEMNESEBOM
ZEEMeFBUOT:
2002 2001
—2ECF —ZT—&
7
1 _
1 1
1 1
= 1
= 1
10 9
2 2

RAFE & E =1 ER Y
4o

LA BEET EIRTH
P RIINESZMTERRK
BRI A B
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 6. EERBEEME 2T B AE RN
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) & (&)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments b) EBEMEzEBEAL

Details of five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances
Bonus
Benefits in kind (i)

Number of directors
Number of employees

N A=

m o Bt
25

T Y 5= ()

\

EEAH
BE AR

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

7 #1,500,0017 £ % #2,000,000 7T
7 #2,000,0017T 2 7% # 2,500,000 7
7 #3,000,0017T 2 75 ¥ 3,500,0007C
7 #5,500,0017T £ % #:6,000,000 7T
75 #7,000,0017L 2 7% # 7,500,000 7

EeMezhi ALTHME

DT

2002
—2E-F
HK$’000
BET T

9,272

1,500
41

10,813

2002
—gT=%

2001
—FE—F
HK$’000
BB F T

7,828
1,025
12,279

21,132

2001
T —4F

A

SIS ARII T

2002
=215

2001

[
Al
Al

|
4:”

- a4 N
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 6. EEREEME2TERAE NN

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) € (&)

(o)  Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments by BEEMEzEAEAL(E)

(Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the RAFE xaMEmims A

five highest paid individuals (including directors and T (BREEEREES) INE

employees) as an inducement to join the Group or BB &I~ 53E RS E A

as compensation for loss of office. UNSIERSE a3 2PN
BE(E -

(i) Benefits in kind includes the difference between (i)
the market price of the Company’s shares and the
exercise price of share options granted to the
directors or employees at the date of exercise of
those options irrespective of whether the resulting
shares were sold or retained by the directors. The
difference amounted to approximately HK$74,000
(2001: approximately HK$12,479,000) and does not
affect the results of operations of the Group. Refer
to note 25 to the accounts for details of options
granted and exercised during the year.

BEYFm O EMEESE
BIES B REEFE A
TEEM A R R E T B/
EH B TERNRE
EEHEBRIAEEMN
RE o 3% =B E K
74,0007T (ZEZE — 4 :
415 112,479,000 ) * T
R B TE 7 2E [B] B AR R AR
oA FRERMHRIT
ERRENFBFEDRRE
B Kfatos-

7.  STAFF COSTS 7. BIEH
2002 2001
—BE-F 2T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETF T BF T
Salaries and allowances T & &EA 42,009 53,648
Staff welfare and insurance BT HEF &ER 2,868 2,232
Staff training and recruitment BT KB 1,112 135
Pension costs — mandatory provident fund RIKEKA — 2D

and defined contribution plans N A TEHREE 950 1,259
46,939 57,074

Staff costs include directors’ remuneration (note 6). BETERABREEEMS (5E6) -
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

8. TAXATION 8. ®HHE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEANEGEBNIRAREE 2 Bt ER
16% (2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for FHREFIE16% (T —F:16%) 1F
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated HIBEE G INEF 2 TR AR R
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the REEMGEFERMBFIEEERL S
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the ¥Bule 2 IRITMEETH-

Group operates.

2002 2001
—EEC-F —TE—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong profits tax BAENFH
— Provision for current year —ARFEERE (16) (1,647)
— Write-back of overprovision in respect — BB AR FE%
of prior years AR B BB - 7,187
Overseas tax BN IR
— Provision for current year —KREFEE (581) =
— Write-back of overprovision in respect — O FEES
of prior years SR A 8 51 =
Share of taxation attributable to associates  FE/G B2 A R 2 1B 394,433 21,313
393,887 26,853
Deferred taxation credit for the year has not been provided RAFARFRZELEHEBERK =B
in respect of the following: Tl
2002 2001
—EE-F —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Accelerated depreciation allowance mERFrERTEE 493 362
Tax losses s E B 7,117 7,181
7,610 7,543
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11.

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 9.

The (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders includes a net
loss of approximately HK$51,062,000 (2001: net profit of
approximately HK$337,312,000) which has been dealt with

in the accounts of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends declared before year end
— Interim dividend of HK$ nil per share
(2001: HK$0.036 per share)

Dividends proposed after year end
- Final dividend of HK$ nil per share
(2001: HK$0.012 per share)

REREM (BER) &7

FTARRNFIRE 2BREEMLFER
%) /5 75 51,062,000 ( ZE T —
FORR ML 337,312,0007T ) ©

10. RE
2002 2001
—EECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TF T BT T
REE BRI A MRS
— KRR H R B
—EE—
BB 3.610) - 56,257
REEREEZRE
— Nk B R HR AR B
—EFE—
FREEA.200) - 18,759
= 75,016

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2002 (2001:

HK$0.012 per share)

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

11.

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share for the

year is based on the loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$993,422,000 (2001: profit attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$371,432,000) divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year of 1,563,259,972 shares (2001:

1,559,714,405 shares).

BEEMTEBARE _TT_FXH
BE(ZEZ2-F:ZREE1.2(0) -

SR (BR) BF

BREAR (BB BFIRRFEEN
B 1B 4978 #003,422,0007T (=& F
— & BF49788371,432,0007T) &
RERNB BTG 2 10 15 I 2
1,563,259,972k (=& & —4F :
1,559,714,4050% ) 51 & o
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 1. B8R (BB) BA (&)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st HE-_ZTT—F+-_A=+—HIL
December 2001 is computed by dividing adjusted net profit FENEREEIFIZAEBRRE
for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the B FREFREHABRL BAREE
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding BRTEEREMNESE S EEES
during the year adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential MR D 2 IR EGT &
ordinary shares from conversion of convertible notes and
exercise of share options.
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December HE-_ZTT-F+=-_A=+—HIL
2002 is the same as the basic loss per share as all potential FEMNERBEERETRALNE
ordinary shares are anti-dilutive. BHER - AmEEENTRARE AR
HEgE.
The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is as BREAREF%R (BBR) /BT
follows: BIE TV EETE -
2002 2001
3 ol 3 ZZT-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT
Computation of adjusted net (loss)/profit HREF (FR) /BANE
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders BREEG(BB) /BF (993,422) 371,432
Add: Interest expenses of the convertible notes M BRREEF X - 12,548
Adjusted net (loss)/profit ARRT (BB) /BF (993,422) 383,980
Computation of adjusted weighted average AEENELIRENGTE
number of shares
2002 2001
i 3t 3 2%

Weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year

Number of shares that would have been issued if the
convertible notes were converted into shares
during the year

Number of shares that would have been issued if the
outstanding share options were exercised during the year

Adjusted weighted average number of shares

AERBBETRN
I B
BRAIZRZENAFR
RBRFBN

BRFARTE CBBE
BITR M RIT 2 H B

BEEMETIRE

1,563,259,972 1,659,714,405

N/A TEH 52,986,902

N/A 7 F 4,483,451

1,563,259,972 1,617,184,758
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12.

FIXED ASSETS

Cost or valuation
Beginning of year
Additions
Disposal
Reclassification
Deficit on revaluation

End of year

The analysis of cost or
valuation is as follows:
At cost
At professional valuation

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of year
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
Written back on revaluation

End of year

Net book value
End of year

Beginning of year

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

BAE A -
FONHE
wE
urf S
ENDE
EftRME

FRBE

KA 418 5

KA
2XE

RRINE:
FNHRE
REREFE
HERED
EfBRD

FRHE

REFE:
FRHBE

FONHE

framT:

12. BEEEE
Consolidated
RE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold Leasehold  equipment
land and improve-  and motor
buildings  Investment ments vehicles
HEL#  properties HENME KR EE Total
REE RENE £ BRERRE At
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000
BETR BETFT BETR BETFT BETR
99,232 16,263 9,340 35,239 160,074
- - 30 639 669
- - - (533) (533)
(22,770) 22,770 - = -
(21,021) (2,058) - - (23,079)
L95A 36975 9,310 35345 137,131
- - 9,370 35,345 44,715
55,441 36,975 - - 92,416
(5544 36975 98710 35345 137,131
- - 6,348 25,894 32,242
2,327 - 1,124 3,072 6,523
- - - (85) (85)
(2,327) - - - (2,327)
[ T, 42 28881 36353
55,441 36,975 1,898 6,464 100,778
99,232 16,263 2,992 9,345 127,832
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

12.  FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 12. BEEEE (&)
Company
A F
Furniture,

fixtures and

equipment Motor
HRE-£E vehicles Total
REE RE &5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B FT BYTFT BYETT
Cost A :
Beginning and end of year FURFERKRE 1,843 884 2,727
Accumulated depreciation Z2BNE:
Beginning of year F A 1,481 720 2,201
Charge for the year KEFEFR 219 118 337
End of year FRBEE 1,700 838 2,538
Net book value REFEE:
End of year FRHARE 143 46 189
Beginning of year F YRR 362 164 526
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The analysis of net book value of land and buildings and
investment properties is as follows:

12.

BE&E (&)

HETHMPFEEEREMENERR
FEITWT

Consolidated

4
Leasehold land Investment
and buildings properties
HETHREE REWR
2002 2001 2002 2001
“¥¥-F _—TT-F CZ¥R=F _TT-F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$000
BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Held in Hong Kong REBH LW REE
- on long lease (over 50 years) - URBENFE
(BRLT+HF) 46,831 59,202 6,168 7,797
- on medium lease - AP EREORE
(10 to 50 years) (+TZE+%5) 6,700 37,880 24,390 1,842
Held outside Hong Kong REBUIM LR FEE
- on long lease (over 50 years) -NERHENEE
(BBRTH) 1,910 2,150 6,417 6,624
55,441 99,232 36,975 16,263

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in Hong Kong and other regions of the People’s
Republic of China as at 31st December 2002 were
appraised by CB Richard Ellis Limited, an independent
professional valuer in Hong Kong. The investment properties
of the Group in Malaysia as at 31st December 2002 were
appraised by Messrs. Colliers, Jordan Lee & Jaafar Sdn.
Bhd., independent professional valuers in Malaysia. These
properties were appraised on an open market basis and
are carried in the balance sheet at market value.

As at year end, had the leasehold land and buildings been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, their carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$55,441,000 (2001: approximately
HK$99,232,000).

AEEBRBHERPE MR 2+
MWEEFERKREMEHRBEBENE L
= ¥ ¥ {HAICB Richard Ellis., Ltd.
(tHHBET)R_ZTEZE_F+-A
=T—HEMRERADZRED
ZA BB RAEME T F XA
Messrs. Colliers, Jordan Lee &
Jaafar Sdn. Bnd R=ZZEZT = F +=
RA=+—RHEf -EEMEH AR
MEEHTATEAR.

RER PBHHREEZHEL W EE
ENBEERBARKAREZENTE
R 2FHREEKLS R BIERDEE
#7785 #555,441,000 7T (20014F : 4978
#99,232,0007T ) °
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13.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Investment properties of approximately HK$28,939,000
(2001: HK$7,798,000) of the Group are rented out under
operating leases, of which approximately HK$6,169,000
(2001: HK$7,798,000) are rented to an associate and
approximately HK$3,700,000 (2001: HK$4,100,000) are
rented to the ultimate holding company.

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investment, at cost
Unlisted shares
Less: provision for impairment
in value

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying
value of the subsidiaries is not less than the carrying
amount of the subsidiaries at 31st December 2002.

12.

13.

BRE BKAE:
LMD
R ERERE

EE&EE (&)

A& B {EE 4% % 28,939,0005T (=
T —F 4978 ¥7,798,0000T) 2%
BEMFECBRBLEEANMEL L
75 #6,169,0007T (=TT —F: 4%
¥ 7,798,0007T ) B H 78 B — ) Bk &
AR M #) A 3,700,000 (2=
—4F: 4975 % 4,100,0007T) © HFH &2
BEER AT

MEARRERENBATNE
R ER

(a) RHBLARAZKRE

2002 2001
—2E-F —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBMFT BT
1,620,658 1,620,558
(92,412) (92,412)
1,528,246 1,628,146
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES  13.

MEBARRERENBELARANGE

(Continued) RERM (&)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MRHMBLATIZKRE (E)
As at 31st December 2002, particulars of the ARAR_FTE_F+_H
principal subsidiaries of the Company are as follows: =+t HBHEBTINEZENE
NG
Place of
incorporation/
operation Particulars of Percentage
and kind of issued share of equity
legal entity Class of capital interest held
Name of subsidiary oM/ Eegny shares EEL KAFFME  Principal activities
HEARZR RERB L R &R RAEE EXBREAN TTEH
CEL Venture Capital The PRC, Not HK$50,000,000 100%  Provision of investment
(Shenzhen) Limited wholly foreign applicable ~ %%50,000,0007 advisory services and
KREREIERE owned enterprise A investment holding
(RY) AR AR mE Rt EEARE R
NEBELE RAZR
CEL Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited 2 Lk BT services
ARERERREERA R REEERRE
CEL (Secretaries) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of secretarial services
X ARER(HE) R AR b Tk BET REWERY
China Everbright Assets Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%#  Investment
Management Limited & L@k %1,0000007 e
TEAABEERARAA
China Everbright Capital Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100%# Provision of corporate finance
Limited b Eak %%100,00070 and investment advisory
PEEABREFRAA services
RECERERREERRE
®
China Everbright Finance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000,000 100%# Money lending
Limited Bk L@k  %%100,0000007 M EB
mEXRHBERAA
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13.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 13.
(Continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

MEBARKRERENBELARNGE
AR ()

(@) RHBATZ®RE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
operation Particulars of Percentage
and kind of issued share of equity
legal entity Class of capital interest held
Name of subsidiary HR/EEnY shares BB KAFME  Principal activities
WEARER RARS RO ER RAEE BABHEAEAL TEER
China Everbright Financial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%# Investment holding
Holdings Limited i LAk EHI1007T REER
REXKERERERAT Non-voting HK$200,000,000
deferred
BRTE  B%200,000,0007
China Everbright Financial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%# Investment
Investments Limited Bk LBk BT k&
MEEAHBREERAA
China Everbright Forex Hong Kong Ordinary HK$38,000,000 100%# Provision of leveraged foreign
Limited BB L@k 5%38,000,0007 exchange trading services
PEEANERRAT REERMER H KK
China Everbright Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$11,000,000 100%# Provision of futures brokerage
Limited i EER  %%11,000,0007 services
hEXABEARAT RUEBHEBERY
China Everbright Insurance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of insurance agency
Agency Limited Bk TRk BET servioes
MEKARBRREERAR RERBRRERS
China Everbright Research Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,500,000 100%# Investment research
Limited i EER 785,500,000 7T REWE
REXKERARERAT
China Everbright Securities ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$50,000,000 100%# Provision of stock brokerage
(HK) Limited Bt L@k  %%50,000,0007 services
hEXKEH (FH) RUEEHFBERY

ERRA
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 13.
(Continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

MEBARRERENBELARANGE
HBRR ()

(a) RMBLAAZRE (H)

Place of
incorporation/
operation Particulars of Percentage
and kind of issued share of equity
legal entity Class of capital interest held
Name of subsidiary it/ Segny shares B&fA KARME  Principal activities
HEARER REESA RHER RAEE EXREEAL TEEH
China Everbright Securities ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%# Provision of nominee services
(Nominees) Limited Ak Lk B REREARS
ERAEF(RBA)
ERAA
Dial Eight Investments British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 100%# Investment in
Limited AEEREE Lak 1£7 telecommunications business
RAEAEH
Double Fortune Assets Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%# Investment
Limited Bk EER BET K&
REAEARAA
Haiford Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%# Property investment
MEARAT A rak BT WERE
Hairich Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100%# Property investment
i LER 10,0007 NERE
IHD (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia Ordinary M$25,000 100%  Investment holding
SKED Lk 25,0005 RAZR
Janco Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
ERERARAA Bk Lak B WERE
Land City Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
EEERAT BA Lak BT WERE
Mindson Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 100%# Investment
Limited * ABARES EER E &
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 13. KIBARKRENREKE A TNE

(Continued) RERK ()
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) RHBATRZ®RE (&)
Place of
incorporation/
operation Particulars of Percentage
and kind of issued share of equity
legal entity Class of capital interest held
Name of subsidiary 2R/ Eeny shares BE#fT KAFMAE  Principal activities
HWEARER RERBA RGER RAEE EAEHEAL TEER
Mutiplus (Warehouse) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
Limited R TRk ik Vo NERE
RE(58)8RAH
Solidpole Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERARAA Bk TRk BT RERRK
Tankey Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 100%  Property investment
Service Bk D A 20T mERE
RERRAT
Tendai Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Investment in banking
ARBRAH Bk LBk BT operations
Non-voting HK$445,000,000 RARTEHR
deferred shares 7% 445,000,000 7T
ERFEELERN
Well Logic Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%# Property investment
Limited A TRk ik Vo NERE
BRREERAR
# Subsidiaries held indirectly. # [FBERFBEZNELNA -
*  Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. * JEASEE Tk B 5 AT F
The aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not audited BT &1% 2 B 2 7l I 7B =
by PricewaterhouseCoopers is less than 1% of the ok 3B & 5l F % AT & % 8
Group’s total assets. BB 1~ 5] 2 JF B E LK £ F
BEELR% °
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEWHKEARRE

F& W B 8 2~ B 3R = M
REEEEEREBY BROBE

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment

except for an amount approximately 381,022,0007T (20014 : #4978
HK$381,022,000 (2001: approximately ¥ 687,525,000 ) F iz F15

HK$687,525,000) which bears interest at an average F B0.325% 1 B (20014 : F
of 0.325% per annum (2001: average of 2.5% per BHEL25%) I RS FEE
annum). AT B o
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13.

14.

For the year ended 31st December 2002
2z

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES  13.

(Continued)

SEF_F+AS+—HIFE

(c) Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 14.

(a) Investments in associates:

Investment, at cost
Unlisted shares in
- Hong Kong
- Overseas
Listed shares in Hong Kong
Share of post-acquisition
reserves

Less: Accumulated provision
for impairment in value
Premium on acquisition

Quoted market value of
listed shares

MEARRERANBARNGE
RER (&)

(c) ENKBRARE
Fﬂﬂﬁ%“ IR B AT
ﬁ}fﬁ#ﬁ&ﬁlmf‘%ﬁi =
,Hﬂ°

BMEATNRERENBHE QAN
|

The directors are of the opinion that the underlying
value of the associates is not less than the carrying
amount of the associates at 31st December 2002.

(a) HE2AQAIER
Consolidated Company
=E YN
2002 2001 2002 2001
—EE-F —TE—F ZBEZF —TIT—F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
BE BRAE:
FEETRHD
- BB 40,458 102,174 40,390 102,106
— g4 5,500,755 4,985,693 3,751,184 3,751,184
BB LEWRA 904,411 904,411 = -
J& 1 U B 1%
& (252,036) 642,012 = =
6,193,588 6,634,290 3,791,574 3,853,290
B BRI EERE
(165,548) (165,548) (40,931) (40,931)
Wi s B (3,830,061)  (3,843,789) - =
2,197,979 2,624,953 3,750,643 3,812,359
SN )
mE 591,941 443,076 = =
BEEMRABLERANEER
1&%%&%@&&:%::
F+_A=+—HHEAEE
(e
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

14.  INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 14. H&AFREREMNBE QAT
(Continued) H (&)
(b) As at 31st December 2002, particulars of the (b) AEER=-ZZT=_F+=-HA
principal associates of the Group are as follows: = t—H TEBEQAER
LU
Percentage of equity
Place of interest held
incorporation/ RARARFEEAEREALL
Name of associate operation Principal activities Directly Indirectly
BeNmER Hm/ EenY  FEEHR EE B
China Everbright Bank Company Limited The PRC Banking operations 21.39% —
(“Everbright Bank”) H RITER

RERERBITRODERAR ([HARFT])

Everbright Securities Company Limited The PRC Securities operations - 49%
(“Everbright Securities’) (i) 3 BERER

KARLEHFBEREEAR ([KAEF]) ()

International Bank of Asia Limited Hong Kong Banking operations = 20%
(“Int’l Bank of Asia”) (ii) B RITER

AEERBITERAR (DEEER]) ()

(i) Pursuant to a rights issue arrangement of (i) BARGFEFR-ZFE
Everbright Securities in April 2002, the Group ZFAZHRETHE
has paid cash consideration of approximately KEEFR-_ZFFE-F
HK$515 million in April 2002 maintaining its 4 A B 2 #1745
shareholding in EBS at 49%. M5.151E T UIRFFHE

7 K AE 5 BT 5 B /Y
49% 1 IR L B -
(i) Associate not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. (ii) FFAZ FE T 5 oK 3B & AT
FIEBE R &
7y Al e
® (i) During the year, the Group disposed the entire (i)  AEERKFELHE
interest in Standard Life (Asia) Limited at a TEEBHIEEAZ

consideration of HK$40,000,000. Gain on
disposal amounted
HK$25,805,000.

to approximately

wmE (M) BERA A
Z2ER 7 HEEEE
43 7% 8 40,000,0007T
BREREWNZLEE
25,805,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 14.

BENAREREMNBE QAR

(Continued) H (&)
()  Supplementary financial information of principal (c) ETEBMEZNRIZERTUBE
associates is as follows: o
Everbright Int’l Bank
Everbright Bank Securities of Asia
KRBT X KAt % BEER
For the year For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st
December 2002 December 2002 December 2002
BE-%%-F HBE-FT-F HE-BS-F
rT2EEr=E TSHSr=E TrSHEr=E
EFE IEFE tHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 HK$'000
ARE T AREF T BEFT
Profit and loss account BEE
Turnover EEE 10,256,182 544,628 2,738,354
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEAT (B1B) /BF (5,924,334) (355,507) 221,868
Current taxation KEEHE - (16,362) =
Deferred tax credit FEHEER 1,768,040 97,288 3,470
(Loss)/profit attributable to REES (B1B) /&7
shareholders (4,156,294) (274,581) 225,338
Dividends & 2 - - 128,937
(d)  Amounts due to associates (d) ENBEAIARRKE
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, JE ST & N R RIA 1 A E R
interest free and have no fixed term of repayment. e RERTEEERAR-
15. INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 15. HEEZEHEBRE
Consolidated
®e
2002 2001
—22=F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TF T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost IE £ R 19 AX A 457 457
Share of post-acquisition reserves FEMR B R B 1,782 1,782
Share of net assets B FEE 2,239 2,239
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

15. INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 15.

(Continued)

The jointly controlled entity is

under liquidation where the

Group’s share of its net assets is stated at the carrying

amount as at 31st December

2000. The directors are of

the opinion that the underlying value of the investment in

jointly controlled entity is not less than its carrying amount

at 31st December 2002.

As at 31st December 2002,

particulars of the jointly

controlled entity of the Group are as follows:

HEZHERBRKRE (8)

\

HEIZHEREEMES-
ﬁﬂ%%?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁé
EF+ A=+ BHNEEERE
EEMRBEREHERBZKREE
BY MEREE=ZZEZE_F+=A4
=t+t—HHNE@EEE-

i

Al

S
|1

JiE
24

0le

k

o

A

—Ft+t-A=t—H &%
EHERBZRENE R

- B %
S 4
j]]

Percentage
of equity
interest
Place of Issued and indirectly
Form of incorporation paid up held
business and operation capital AAQFHE
Name structure ZMR BETR Fi{EEZA  Principal activity
AAAR BERS SEh Y BERAEE EREIHL FTEEHR
China Everbright Industrial Incorporated  Singapore $$200,000 50%  Fund management
Investment Management Pte Ltd. B VNS DI 200,000 (in liquidation)
PEKRATIXREERUABRAA A EeER(EE+)
16. NON-TRADING SECURITIES 16. EXZFH
Consolidated Company
) NG
2002 2001 2002 2001
“R¥=F _—_TT-F ZREF=-F _TT—F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETFT BETT BETFT
Equity securities listed in BERELMBS
Hong Kong, at fair value AN E 1,302,769 1,508,019 2,750 10,250
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

NON-TRADING SECURITIES (Continued) 16.

The following is a list of the principal non-trading securities
of the Group as at 31st December 2002:

HERXFZEE (H)

RZZBE_F+_A=+—HB &&
BIZRSZBHFREZEHNT

Place of
incorporation/ Effective equity
operation interest held
Company name T/ Principal activities REBFAE
ARER Bewl TEXH EXEBADL
China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited (i) Hong Kong Provision of telecommunication services 0.23%
hEBE (FE)ARLA () i R AR R %
Hong Kong Exchanges Hong Kong Operation of stock exchange and futures exchange 0.04%
and Clearing Limited N in Hong Kong and their related clearing houses
BERGREREMBRRAA RERERERBERFMREBEELRA
China Unicom Limited Hong Kong Provision of telecommunication services 0.06%
hEBBRGER DA B 1R 3 AR AR
Frankie Dominion International Bermuda Manufacturing and trading 7.29%
Limited BRE REREHEH
ENXEERERAA
Theme International Holdings Limited ~ Bermuda Manufacturing and retail operation 4.98%
CERTEREEERAA BRE HERTERH
Stockmartnet Holdings Limited Hong Kong Securities brokerage 0.31%
BEHRFREMERERAA EE BERLEB
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Banking operation 0.49%
RERTT (BE)ERAA e RITHER
(i) At 31st December 2002, the carrying amount of interests (i) R-ZFEE-_F+-_A=1+—H"

in China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited exceeds 10% of total
assets of the Group.

Non-trading securities of aggregate carrying amount of
HK$592 million (2001: HK$nil) have been pledged to secure
bank loan and overdraft facilities for the Company and China
Everbright Securities (HK) Limited, a subsidiary.

KREEFTEEE (BE) BRAA
£ AR [E] (8 5 702N 4 B4R A E Y
10%°

R-_BE-_F+-A=+—0 #%8
HEBERET(ZEE—F:8) 2
IERGBHEFRITESR  BEARAF
FEMBRAFENEKRES (BE)
ERARERBRITERREZEE-
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. EREE

Consolidated

o)
Goodwill Trading rights Total
[k XAk &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BEF T BEFT
Cost %
Beginning of year FRE 145,728 2,450 148,178
Disposal of an associate HEEZ A A (13,728) = (13,728)
End of year FRER 132,000 2,450 134,450
Accumulated amortisation ES £
Beginning of year FHHE (17,028) - (17,028)
Charge for the year REGHE (13,200) (490) (13,690)
Written back on disposal HE B Z A A
of an associate & ol 13,728 - 13,728
Impairment loss AERXKX = (960) (960)
End of year FRHH ~(18,500) (1,450) ~ (17,950)
Net book value REFE
End of year FREHH 115,500 1,000 116,500
Beginning of year FOE 128,700 2,450 131,150
Goodwill, which arose from acquisition of associates, is EEEEEBAEBRWEERE A AR Z
amortised over a period of 10 years. Trading rights are e WiRTFHREHE X FHER
amortised over a period of 5 years. h RS-
18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 18. BFfEX
Consolidated
wE
2002 2001
—EECF —ET—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBEFT BT T
Amounts due from margin clients FREFER 115,050 72,907
Less: provision for doubtful debts O R BR A (2,503) (1,203)
112,547 71,704
Advances to customers are secured by listed securities of EFERANAEBEPHEZLMHE

margin clients held as collateral. FHEHE I o
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19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables, net
Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Deposits with brokers for futures 81 & & 74 T A

and derivative transactions
Unrealised loss on futures and
derivative transactions

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

Details of the aging analysis on trade receivables are as

follows:

Within 1 month
Within 1 to 2 months
Within 2 to 3 months
Within 3 to 6 months
Over 6 months

Less: provision for doubtful debts

19. EBEUWERF - BRERAMLR
Consolidated Company
=e AT

2002 2001 2002 2001

—EE-F 2T —F ZBE-_HF —_FTLT—F

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$’000

BT AT BE¥TT FETFI

KRR 55 FE 172,861 68,444 = =

e BNARR

H b 8 U BR X 115,167 65,459 11,541 11,170

RHEL - 18,566 = =
BERTAETAZ

AERER - (1,391) - -

288,028 151,078 11,541 11,170

JERRZ SRRSO T:
Consolidated
we

2002 2001

—22-F —EEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

B TF T BT T

—@AMNUT 172,163 68,858

—Z=-@A 263 =

—z=={@A 1,264 =

=z NEA 168 =

~E A E 3 586

173,861 69,444

iR BRYEAES (1,000) (1,000)

172,861 68,444
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 19.

Trade receivables mainly comprised amounts due from the

Group’s brokerage clients, brokers and clearing houses.

These receivables are normally due two days after trade

date, and the extension of credit requires management’s

approval on a case-by-case basis. These receivables have

excluded the brokerage client monies maintained in the

trust accounts with Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing

Corporation Limited.

20. TRADING SECURITIES

At fair value:

Debt securities:
— listed overseas
— unlisted

Equity securities:
— listed in Hong Kong
— listed overseas

20.

AFE:

(EE2E
— /s
— Lt

B AN %
~FE L™
—E b £

BRERF - RERENR(FH

BURZSGREIERAEB ZRLE
BEFP BEBPREZEMEKR —
AR 5 & FA B 8- IEHE X F i
IR E [ R HUE < L R Y T B1F
RERBEHERIHARAAN
SRR 2R EEB TP KA

REES
Consolidated
wE
2002 2001
—®E=F —TT—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
- 7,216
45,956 78,849
45,956 86,065
257,777 139,029
197 -
257,974 139,029
303,930 225,094
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21.

22.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash on hand, savings and
current accounts
Fixed deposits with banks

HE—_TTE—GF+-_A=+—HIFE

21. SBITEHRES
Consolidated Company
we AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—EE_F —TE—F ZEBE-HF —_FTT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
BYEFr AE¥Tr BEFT FEEFT
He EERER
= 73,984 108,488 216 1,023
IRITEHAF 50,209 1,144,412 37,600 320,431
124,193 1,252,900 37,816 321,454

The Group maintains trust accounts with authorised

institutions as part of its normal business transactions. At

31st December 2002, trust accounts not otherwise dealt

with in these accounts amounted to approximately HK$98

million (2001: approximately HK$82 million).

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUED

CHARGES

Trade payables

Other creditors, deposits
received and accrued
charges

22.

AEBEERTHEAMYETEERS AU
ERPEEREBAEARPELEZT
K RZEBEZEZF+=—A=+—81"
REFARERMEEERPHEBLAE
#9,8008 L (T —F 4B
8,2008 L) °

EAERX - CEHESRARER

Consolidated Company
wE AT

2002 2001 2002 2001

TEBECF —TE—F ZEBE-F —TE—F

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

BETFT EEKFrT B¥Fr EBETFrT

BN AR 57,905 63,425 - =
H bR
BElliRe Rk

TEIRE A 18,844 27,673 3,925 6,403

76,749 91,098 3,925 6,403

Trade payables represent amounts due to brokerage clients,

brokers and clearing houses, and are due in one month.

Trade payables to clients exclude those payables placed in

trust accounts.

RIENFRERBNRLCEBES
RumE P REE AR L E —(E
AZABI e BNELEET TP RR
TEEBEREERPNEMNERR

8
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23. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

The potential net deferred tax assets, which is not

recognised in the balance sheet as its realisation in the

foreseeable future is not certain, comprising the following:

23. EEBIE
EARAEERENT R RaE BEIR
RIERIEF EE W ARERNARE A -
AERNELEFHIBEEENT:

Consolidated Company

=Ee AT
2002 2001 2002 2001

—¥F-F —TTF -BR-F —TT—F

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BETFT BETFT BETT
Tax losses 7% & 18 46,659 39,542 8,599 5,310
Accelerated depreciation NG E R TR
allowances (399) (892) (26) (79)
46,260 38,650 8,573 5,231
24. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 24, H|ITERREX
Consolidated Company
=a AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BBF-F —_TTF —BF=-F _TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT
Secured bank loans (note 33) R {7 R K
(H1##33) 40,000 - 40,000 -
Overdrafts B - 155 - -
40,000 155 40,000 -
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

Issued and fully paid:
Beginning of year
Exercise of convertible note
Exercise of share options

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

25.

MR

Rl

BB .00 2

BEEHITREBRERA:

F N ER

T A R A RIB A -

1T R B

End of year FREBE

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted
on 27th September 1996, the Company may grant options
to the Directors and full time employees of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum
of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The subscription price will be determined by
the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of the
nominal value of the shares and 80% of the average closing
price of the shares quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the option.

Pursuant to the share option scheme, options which are
exercisable in prescribed portion for a period of six years
following the date of offer to subscribe for 36,300,000
shares of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$5.152 per share (subject to
adjustment) were granted on 21st March 1997 to the
Directors and employees of the Group. The options are not
exercisable prior to the expiry of two years after the date of
offer of the options.

LA
2002 2001
—B2=-fF —TTF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BMF T BEFT
2,000,000 2,000,000
1,562,991 1,643,741
10,539
360 8,711
1,563,351 1,562,991

AR 8

BREBEARBAR-—AAREAA T
+ BRA N RS A QR AR
BRAAEBEEELE2BEER TR
PR B A RBHRZ RA QR ER
BERTRABD 2 TR 1TEE
1 HREFERE HEAAEREOE
BN MR ERER L RBERENN T
EXZERBERAXZABERA
AFHRTENAE S Z N\t

FZA-_t—HRAAXEEEEZERE
BRHRRKRE ZERREAEREL
BHEIE NF N FF A BT BB TR
B E®E5.1527T (A T LA ) /91T
£ {8 R A £36,300,0008 A A 7
P& 7 rp 5 % T 1B 7B 51,00 2 BR1D °
ZERBRETATRELABEME
WITfE -
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25.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

In 1999, further share options, which are exercisable in
prescribed portion for a period of three years following the
date of offer, to subscribe for 29,050,000 and 800,000
shares of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$4.308 and HK$5.805 per
share respectively (subject to adjustment) were granted to
Directors and employees of the Group.

In 2000, further share options, which are exercisable in
prescribed portion for a period of four and three years
respectively following the date of offer, to subscribe for
2,000,000 and 500,000 shares of HK$1.00 each in the
share capital of the Company at a subscription price of
HK$5.220 per share (subject to adjustment) were granted
to a Director and an employee of the Group.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held
on 24th May 2002, an ordinary resolution was passed to
adopt the New Share Option Scheme (the “New Scheme”)
and to terminate the share option scheme adopted on 27th
September 1996 (the “Old Scheme”).

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the Directors and full time employees of the
Group and its associated companies to subscribe for shares
in the Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 24th May 2002.
The exercise price is determined by the Directors which
shall be at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer.

25.

R (%)
RRESE (E)

R—NANE RNARBRANEEE
EMEERHRRE ZERREER
RELBHE=-FANEFUARFEH
BEA 5 B 1% B 3R B 1 4.308 T M A H
5.8057C (AT T AFE) H1THEE R
8 & #£29,050,000/1800,0008% A A
A A% 7 o & AR T E B 5 1.000T 2 IR

,f/'\ ®

R-ZZTFE ARABRAXAEE—
BEZN—ZEEREARE ZZE
RBEESNRFLBHENFR=
FAN FF AR EEE RS RBE
5.2207C (AT FAFE) 1THEE R
% A& #£2,000,000 % F1500,000 f% 4
ARARAFEBREESE1.00T 2

Bz 17 o

RZZEZEZFRAZ+WA AQH
RUOTZBRREFNAEL - BBT —H
B R E AR T R AT (37
FTEI)WARIETERAR —ANANF
NAZ+ BRI EE ([EET
gl

BB E A AR A B RAEE
REBENANESRE2BES K
TRERE BUAIRBERS BARAF
RZZEZE-_FRA-+MHEHBE T
BREABD 2 THRD-ITEESHE
FeEF YELPEATIN=2F2
& (I EEE: (i) AR LRI E
EH BORBIMEARERTZ
I mfE : R(iBEEEERREE BA
hER S B RO RS H®RE
KEAIRZEHKME-
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25.

26.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE—_TTE—GF+-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the New Scheme, options which are exercisable

in prescribed portion for a period of three and a half year
following the date of offer, to subscribe for 21,600,000
shares of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$4.360 per share (subject to

adjustment) were granted on 26th June 2002 to the

Directors and employees of the Group.

Movements in share options during the year ended 31st

December 2002 are as follows:

25.

R (4)

RIRES B (B

RIEFHE RAR N T _FX
AZ+ R "BRAXEEEZREER
R AE o SRR AN IR B
B=FERN BFUFEHEL RS
% % #4.3607T (A T LAFH ) W77
8 RE A $£21,600,0000% 48 2 7] %
AR B EESE1.000 2 kD e

BE_TT_F+t-A=t+—BL
FE - ARER SR AR AERT &M 5w R
HEFHIT

Number of share options

RREHE
Subscription Offered Lapsed Exercised

price Beginning during during during End of
Date of offer per share of year the year the year the year year
RHBH BRITEE FOHE FRARH FREHN FRTRE FRHBE
21st March 1997 HK$5.152 3,264,000 = 102,000 - 3,162,000
- hANtE=A=+—H
11th June 1999 HK$4.308 9,360,000 = 9,000,000 360,000 =
—ANEARRT—H
15th November 1999 HK$5.805 480,000 - 480,000 - -
—ANANE+—A+EE
29th June 2000 HK$5.220 500,000 = 500,000 = =
—ZETFRAZTAIA
26th June 2002 HK$4.360 - 21,600,000 800,000 - 20,800,000
e s A Bl N =
RESERVES 26. f#&

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December

2002 as calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance amounted to approximately
HK$352,315,000 (2001: HK$422,136,000).

RZEZT_F+_A=1+—8"
RKARIZRBEBERREETIBE
AENUSETRRZEFHEDN RS
#352,315,0007C (ZEE —F 4%
#422,136,0007T ) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

27.

The following continuing connected transactions were

entered into during the year:

Securities brokerage commission
received from China Everbright
Technology Limited, an associate
of ultimate holding company

Management fee received from
an investment fund of ultimate
holding company

Rental expense paid to wholly
owned subsidiary of ultimate
holding company (note(d))

A & AR AE A R Bl 2

ok W/NETE e BN
BHR B R 2~ 7 Y ER

ZREME
[ B AR 4 AL 2 )
RAZREES
WRERE
[ % A AE B 2 )

REZREMBR
XfHEE (A1)

The following transactions were entered into with

related parties during the year:

Interest expenses paid to ultimate
holding company:
— on convertible notes
— on revolving loan
Interest income earned from
associates on deposits placed
Consultancy fee received from
an associate (note(i))
Rental income received from:
— an associate (note(g))
— ultimate holding company
(note(h))
Rental expense paid to ultimate
holding company
(note (e), (f) and (j))

[ £ AR A AL X )

Stz B

—AERRER

- BREX
e B & 2 B/ Y ER
FRZABWA
Bk & X ) I ER Y
B (M)
He WA

BEALXRS

(@)

=

(0)

~BBDE ()

—RRERAE
(Kt aEh))

[ £ AR A AL 2 )

N HEE (HiEe)

%))

AEBRERRERBR

ZWN

2002
—22-F
HK$°000
BETT

4,147

2001
—EF—F

HK$°000
BETIT

51

4,147

AEEBRFREBABRALZ

R :
2002
—EB=F
HK$°000
BT T

6,233
3,664

2,590

1,265

453

228

196

2001
—TT 4

HK$’000
BT T

12,5648

23,493

310

453

312

384
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BER-—TT—F+_A=1+—HIFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27. BEAXRZ (H)
(©) Included in the balance sheets are the following 0 REEAEBXRAMNBE AL
balances with related parties: ERABEIE:
Consolidated Company
wE AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
“B¥F-F —_TE—F ZF¥=-F —_TT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BEFTT BEFT BETFT
Deposits placed with REEERAE 2 7R
associates (BIERIRIT
(included in bank EHRRIEE) ()
balances and cash) (i) 52,153 168,847 - 38,117
Interest receivable from  J& Uz B 2 A &) F B
an associate (included (B FERE I
in debtors, deposits R Ee Rk
and prepayments) AR A) 5,745 5,025 5,745 4,624
Amount due from a FEWL B E A A
related company (i) FKIE (i) - 167 - -
Amount due from N
an associate (included KA (B3R
in debtors, deposits JEW R X R &
and prepayment) (iii) R IER A (i) 78,243 25,823 - -
Convertible notes issued %t % F & &%
to ultimate holding UNGIVAEIE: Y4
company (iv) = (v) - (250,000) - (250,000)
Loan from ultimate FER R ARIERR A A
holding company (iv) ZE 5K (iv) (250,000) - (250,000) =
Interest payable on loan & & 42 15 I A )
from ultimate holding BERZFE (iv)
company (iv) (1,577) - (1,577) -
(i Deposits placed with associates are unsecured, (i P& T TF K A3 A

bear interest at commercial terms and will be
repayable in the year 2003.

(i)

Amount due from a related company is unsecured,

interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(iii)

Amount due from an associate arose in the normal

course of securities brokerage business, and is
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

192 B R A8 A
KR-FE=FREE

AR SR

w28 AEETEEER

(it) &M B
(i)  ERHER
B #7554

A B TIEE
HEHFZIEE

EBHR G B BT
ZERERETEEAL-

9

| 7]
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27.

For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

(iv)

On 30th June 1999, the Company issued
convertible notes amounting to HK$300,000,000
to the ultimate holding company as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of a 49% interests
in Everbright Securities Company Limited. The
convertible notes bear interest at a rate of 5% per
annum and repayable in 3 years from drawdown
date. The noteholder has the right at any time
before and including the maturity date to convert
the notes into the shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$4.744 per share
(subject to adjustment). Convertible notes were
recorded as current liabilities as at 31st December
2001. The convertible notes matured on 2nd July
2002 and were repaid through a one year renewable
term loan of the same amount obtained from the
ultimate holding company which bears interest at
the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) plus
1.60% per annum and becomes due on 30th June
20083. On 2nd October 2002, the Company has
re-negotiated the interest rate with the ultimate
holding company and lowered it to HIBOR plus
0.72% per annum.

On 17th January 2001, a wholly owned subsidiary

of the ultimate holding company entered into a

tenancy agreement with the Group in relation to the

leasing of office premises to the Group for the period
from 31st December 2000 to 30th December 2002.
The rent payable by the Group amounted to
HK$4,147,200 per annum. On 22nd January 2003,
the said lease was renewed for a period of two years
from 31st December 2002 to 30th December 2004.
The rent payable by the Group has been revised to
HK$2,400,000 per annum.

27.

BEALRS (&)

(©

(%)

(iv) R—AANENA=Z+
H &K X F A &K E
R X A #7THEE BB
300,000,000 7T £ &] #£ %
EIRIERBIK BN KI5 F
IR & (F 2~ 7]49% 1 25 B 25
1718 ot A 12 1R 2 I %
5% 1) EF K518 - HiR 5
ZF BB EBELE
FIHH A B 49 (F fo] B 2 2% Z
B A 9] A BB (B 5
#4.744 7T (A] T X 38 &)
5 22 I B I8 B K 1 A AR
—fFE+ - HA=14+—H5FA

TEE) B (& AJ R R BB 7
—EF_FLAZ EiU

H U —F 5 RmREES
AIFEER (9 [F] 5 2 BE A — fﬁ

B a5 E B ENIEE -
;% BRI BB IRITAIZ
FRZ f11.50%1+1 8 30 #5
F*ff*fﬁ/\ﬁ#/ﬂ
F-R=—FET=F+H
ZH ARAAHEREE /iz
RNE] BB % 15EEE
FREBZHRITAIZ fai?i
FIE 500.72% °

%

R_TE— i—ﬁ+tau?
BERRAAIZEZERB A
ﬁK%IM;fﬁﬁ%cxﬁ
EREREAR—BEHLY
¥ HHBE-ZTZZETF+=A
=+t BT _F+=
A=TBil-FHE ABEE
4,147,200t - R =TT =4
—B=-+=-R RAHEHA
B _F+-_A=+—
HEHEZE-ZZTNF+ =4
=1+RH FHeABRAEK
2,400,0007T °

7z
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
HE—_TTE—GF+-_A=+—HIFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27. BEAXXREF (&)
()  On 18th July 2001, the Group entered into a tenancy ) RZEE—FtA+NH &K
agreement with the ultimate holding company in EEESKRERARZES

relation to the leasing of residential premises to the
Group for the period from 3rd July 2001 to 2nd July
2002. The rent payable by the Group amounted to
HK$84,000 per annum. On 14th June 2002, the said
lease was renewed for a period of one year from 3rd
July 2002 to 2nd July 2003. The rent payable by the
Group remains the same.

On 26th July 2001, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with the ultimate holding company in
relation to the leasing of residential premises to the
Group for the period from 1st August 2001 to
31st July 2002. The rent payable by the Group
amounted to HK$84,000 per annum.

On 28th September 2001, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with Everbright Bank in relation
to the leasing of office premises to Everbright Bank
for the period from 22nd October 2001 to 21st
October 2002 with an option to renew for another
term of one year. Pursuant to the exercise of such
option, the lease has been renewed for one year
from 22nd October 2002 to 21st October 2003 at
the same rent. The rent payable to the Group
amounted to HK$452,520 per annum.

BHEA AE BRI REHEA
—EEEYE AHHE-_ZZ
—F+A=AREE-_TT =
ELAZAIL FEEBEE
84.0007T - — BT — 4~ A
+HA BEAOMNBHEE &
Hy — ¢§ Tt A=
H & H —EE=&F+/—
E!JJ:'E%E@T\@@

R-ET—F+t N E!'
R R REE HX/AT
—IHBN & ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ—

HEEYE HHRE_FF—
FNA-—RE_ZT_F+t
AZ+—HL-FHEREE
84,0007T °

RZEZE—FNA=+N\HB"
REBEXKNBTHE—H
A NEBE I M KX KERTT
HREE—BRAYE BHA
—EE—F+A-+=-HZE
—ET-_F+A=Zt+—HIL
KRRBITEERZELNER
WM —F o S REBITEAT
ERTMER  ZALHE T EH
—F BHZEEFTA=T
—_HE-BEE=F+A=-+
—HIE e B TE - AE
EEWEHES AE® 452,520

ﬁ:o
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For the year ended 31st December 2002

HE-—_TE_F+-A=+—HIFE

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

On 17th December 2001, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with the ultimate holding
company in relation to the leasing of residential
premises to the ultimate holding company for the
period from 1st January 2002 to 31st December
2002. The rent payable to the Group amounted to
HK$228,000 per annum. On 22nd December 2002,
the said lease was renewed for a period of one year
from 1st January 2003 to 31st December 2003. The
rent payable to the Group has been revised to
HK$192,000 per annum.

On 21st December 2001, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an Investment
Consultancy Agreement with Everbright Securities
whereby the said subsidiary provides investment
consultancy services to Everbright Securities. The
aggregate consultancy fee payable by Everbright
Securities in 2002 amounted to RMB1,332,000.

On 14th June 2002, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with the ultimate holding company in
relation to the leasing of residential premises to the
Group for the period from 8th April 2002 to 7th April
2003. The rent payable by the Group amounted to
HK$84,000 per annum.

27.

BEALRS (&)

()

RZEE—F+=-A++t8H
AEBEFERERARES
—IEBLN AEBERELE—
BREEDE BHPH_FTT =
F—HA—HE-_ZTZ_F+
—A=Z+—HI- Al AEB
#228,000 R EE=F
+—A=-+—-B ZBEHEF
BH—F m-_TEE=F—A
—HBE_ZEZT=F+_-_A=
+—HL - FHSABREE
192,0007T °

RZEBEE—F+HA=Z+—
H AXRRIzZ2EMNBRA R H
HRIEHFF —BREBN
% B LA e KAE HFIR %
BiEARB A RAFHR-F
TFARUINERAEA
R #1,332,0007T °

R-EZE_FAXATHEBE &
SEERRERARRR —
REA AEE R AEEM
—HEEVE HYPH-_TT
“HFHNANBRERE-_TET=
FOALBIE-FHERBEE
84,0007T °
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28.

29.

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. THAEME
Consolidated Company
wE AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—ERE-F —TE—F ZBE-F —_FTET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BEFTT BEFT BEFT
Provision of banking guarantee 2T L4 L
in respect of Mr. Ch’ng Poh BB ITER
intended appeal (note 30(a)) (H77#£30(a)) - 270,919 = 270,919
Guarantee given to financial =1 NN o)
institutions in respect of RITEEE
banking facilities granted ElA Y
to subsidiaries RAHER - - 380,000 1,436,002

At 31st December 2002, the Group’s subsidiaries had not
utilised any of its banking facilities. As at 31st December
2002, the Company had issued corporate guarantees to
certain financial institutions for trading facilities granted to
a subsidiary which engages in leveraged foreign exchange
trading and other subsidiaries which carry out derivatives
transactions. The guarantee amounts vary and are
dependent on the volume of transactions effected with the
financial institutions.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitments as
at 31st December 2002 (2001: nil).

R-ZFZE-_HF+-_A=+—H £H
B T2 FRAYEREEMAMER R
BE_FT_A=+—H &2 77%
—H2EBTIINEXSZZHB A

&/,\1/T$IﬂT§’iEZﬁ1ﬂW“’“
AR SRER S MR EREER-
ZERBERERESBBEELL

R 5 B8 M &
29. RiE
(a) EBXRKIE
RZZEE_F+-_A=+—
B AEEEEREKE(ZST
T—F |E) o
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29.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

follows:

Later than one year

five years

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

29. E¥E (B
Operating lease commitments (b) KEFEXRIE

Operating lease commitments as at 31st December RZEE_F+_A=+—
2002 amounted to approximately HK$5,711,000 A &REHEEAEHEBORE
(2001: approximately HK$5,125,000) of which #5,711,000C (ZEZ—F:
approximately HK$3,158,000 (2001: approximately #7858 5,125,0007T) " E A 4
HK$5,088,000) is payable in the next twelve months. 753,158,000 (Z T F —
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease & 47 ¥ 5,038,0007T) B X
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as R+ EARNBEIN 2 ALE
SR AERBE TS
KEHE RARIZINZ&IE

MERMNKEENT

Consolidated
o)
2002 2001
—EE-F —TE—F
Properties Others Properties Others
BEE Hity BE HAh
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEFT BETFT EBETrT BETT
Not later than one year — — 4 A EI| £f 2,758 400 4,648 390
and not later than ZI Hf

2,553 - 87 -
5,311 400 4,735 390
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For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

29. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 29. A¥E (&)
(c)  Future operating lease arrangement (c) RERLEHEZH
As at 31st December 2002, the Group had future RZZEE_F+=A=+—
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- H -7 8 BRI A Pl HGE 89 1%
cancellable operating leases for investment properties B QLML AR AT
as follows: Mz &EBERBETLT:
Consolidated
wE

2002 2001
—22-F —FT—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Not later than one year —F R EH 1,223 1,506

Later than one year and —ERAF A
not later than five years 268 587
1,491 2,093

(d) Derivatives (d fT£IA”
Consolidated Company
wE AT

2002 2001 2002 2001

—BF-F _TTF —BF=-F _TT—F
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
AMFRL BETT EMTT BEFT

Notional amount: LHELE:
Futures contracts HESY - 515,971 - =

o
g
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30.

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE T —F1+-A=+—HIFE

LITIGATION 30.

(@)

On 12th December 1995, the Company issued civil
proceedings against Mr. Ch’ng Poh claiming
damages for conspiracy and/or conversion and/or
breach of fiduciary duty arising from his unlawful
use of approximately HK$127 million of the
Company’s funds in 1985 to finance a purchase of
shares in the Company. Mr. Ch’ng Poh was a former
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Company
which was then known as IHD Holdings Limited.
The trial of the matter was concluded on 28th
February 2000, and the Court handed down its
judgment (the “Judgment”) on 27th February 2001.
Mr. Ch’ng Poh was held liable to the Company for
damages in conversion and conspiracy and for
breach of fiduciary duty. The judgment sum
amounted to HK$336,310,069 as at 27th February
2001. On 27th April 2001, a sum of HK$270,918,527
was paid to the Company under the Judgment and
recognised as other revenue in the consolidated profit
and loss account of the Company for the year ended
31st December 2001. Mr. Ch’'ng Poh subsequently
appealed to the Court of Appeal and further appealed
to the Court of Final Appeal. The Court of Appeal
and the Court of Final Appeal dismissed Mr. Ch’'ng
Poh’s appeals on 19th February 2002 and 19th
December 2002 respectively and upheld the
Judgment in favour of the Company. As at the date
of this report, Mr. Ch’ng Poh still owes the Company
a sum of approximately HK$82 million under the
Judgment and approximately HK$20 million in legal
costs and the Company is taking steps to recover
such sum together with costs from Mr. Ch’ng Poh.
However, there is no assurance that the Company
can recover any part of these sums or at all.
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30. LITIGATION (Continued)

(b)

In January 1998, Mr. Ch’ng Poh commenced civil
proceedings against the Company claiming damages
for breach of an alleged oral agreement by the
Company to sell to him the entire issued share capital
of Keepmore Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The trial of this matter concluded on
12th October 2001. The Court handed down its
judgment on 31st October 2001 and dismissed Mr.
Ch’ng Poh’s claims against the Company. Mr. Ch’ng
Poh appealed against the aforesaid judgment. The
appeal was heard by the Court of Appeal on 27th
September 2002. Mr. Ch’ng Poh’s appeal was
dismissed by the Court of Appeal with costs.

In July 1998, the Company and I.H.D. Management
Services Limited (now known as CEL Management
Services Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, were served with a Statement of Claim
by one of its former senior executives claiming
damages for alleged failure by the Company and
I.H.D. Management Services Limited to grant him
certain share options pursuant to his employment
contract. Pleadings have closed and discovery has
completed. The parties are preparing to set this
matter down for trial.

In August 2001, Avon Investments Limited (“Avon”)
commenced civil proceedings against the Company
claiming damages for alleged wrongful repudiation
of a management agreement between the Company
and Avon. The Company has filed a defence to rebut
the allegations of Avon. The next step in the
proceedings will be exchange of witness statements
which has yet to be completed.

In December 2002, Avon commenced civil action
against the ex-directors, the independent directors
and the current directors of the Company and the
Company. The action is a derivative action in nature
and the action was brought in the name of Avon as
a minority shareholder. The action is at a preliminary
stage and the Company has filed a defence. The
next step is discovery whereby the parties will
exchange documentary evidence in relation to the
claim of the case.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. SZEHEREBERHK=
STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to (@) MRBAT(BE) BAELE

net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

(Loss)/profit before taxation B BiA (B 8) / BF
Interest income HEHA
Interest expenses FlE X
Interest received on advances to customers RPERMEH S
Other interest received i WH 2
Dividend income REWA

Share of profits less losses of associates
Depreciation

B2 DA BIRER
heE

Amortisation of goodwill and trading rights HERR FHEHE

Impairment loss on trading right ROEZRE

Impairment loss on goodwil HERERX

Net gain on disposal of non-trading securities HERSHEF 2 FNE

Provision for impairment in value of KRHEF L

non-trading securities HERE

Net gain on disposal of an associate HEBE AR FhE

Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEATEEZEE

Write back of revaluation deficit on fixed assets ROEEEEERME

Revaluation deficit on fixed assets EffEEEEZRE
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEESEYH L8

capital changes (B#B) /&7

Increase in advances to customers RPETEM

Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments
Decrease in amount due from a related company

FEHR R 1 & BB AT 508 1
e beINCIE O

Increase in trading securities RHEHEM
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, deposits EAEZR BdEER
received and accrued expenses BRER(RD) /&0
Cash (used in)/generated from operations BeEe (FR) /EXE
2R
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENBEBNEH
Interest paid BRHE
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BREEPEEZEE
operating activities (W) /mAFE

(411,985)

EB2RS (RE) RAR
BHER

2002 2001
“EECF —TT-F
HK$:000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(1,387,309) 344,579
(24,709) (79,695)
13,816 12,625
11,280 4,132
3,419 4,628
(11,847) (5,360)
1,308,129 (15,629)
6,523 8,109
13,690 3,300
960 -

- 13,728
(56,933) (60,598)
- 1743
(25,805) -
414 -

- (313)
20,545 8,236
(127,827) 239,485
(40,843) (55,325)
(136,011) (35,537)
167 -
(78,836) (60,036)
(14,349) 41,018
(397,699) 129,105
(2,047) (545)
(12,239) (12,625)
115,935



China Everbright Limited = B 3¢ K 2 i & R 2 &

Notes to the Accounts
R B KA

For the year ended 31st December 2002
BE—FF_F+-_A=+—HIFE

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. HZ&EBHELREBRME (H)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash (b) HBHEeRESEEYREIN
equivalents

2002 2001
—EECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank balances and cash RITHBERA S
- general accounts ——REF 124,193 1,252,900
Deposits pledged or with maturity EEE M@ =18A
over three months BIH 2 73K - (341,382)
124,193 911,518
Short-term bank loans and overdrafts $R{TEHERREX (40,000) (155)
84,193 911,363
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EX¥EEXRSH
2002 2001
—22-F —FT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EYT T BT T
Repayment of convertible notes by BREREREREE
drawdown of revolving loan AT IR BB SRR
(note 27(c)(iv)) (Kia27(c)(iv)) 250,000 =
Issue of shares on conversion of A 83 4 A #8 j% R

convertible notes BTG - 49,997
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

ALFE
32. ZHEHR
(a) XBIE

The Group conducts the majority of its business
activities in three areas: short-term investment
holding, financial services and long-term investment
holding plus other operations. An analysis by
business segment is as follows:

REVENUE

Investment income/(loss)

Brokerage commission and
service income

Other income

Total revenues

RESULTS
Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Interest expenses

Share of profits less losses
of associates

Taxation

Net (loss)/profit attributable
to shareholders

OTHER INFORMATION

Segment assets

Investments in associates

Goodwill

Investments in jointly controlled
entity

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss recognised
in the profit and loss
account

AEBEREEZEBERR
DTR=ZF-EHRE 28R
BMRPHRE BE MR &
EBNHZERDITMT:

Long-term investment

Short-term investment  Financial services plus others Total
R8RE SRR RERERAR £t
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Z9P-F FT-F C29°f "FF-F CRPF SFT-F CQPoF SFT4
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT EEFr AETr  BETT BT AEFr  B¥Tr  BETr
WA
REUN/ (BR) (71,407) 42,043 - = - - (11,497) 42,043
BEMBRBRA
- - T0411 49,635 = - 70411 49,635
A - = - - 00,833 403454 90,833 403454
el ON (1,497) 42043 70411 49635 90,833 403454 89,747 495132
EY. |
PEEE (78,517) 33,534 2,781 (12526) 55915 371,477 (19,821) 392,485
AARNDAER (45,543) (50,910 )
B (BB) /A (65,364) 341575
MEER (13,816) (12,625 )
EEBERF
BHRER (1,308,129) 15,629
HE 303,887 26,853
KRG (5B) /B
(993,422) 371,432
EthER
PREE 370,567 239,261 287,071 250,222 1,321,993 1801,159 1,979,631 2,290,642
BENEER 2,197,979 2,624,953
HE 115500 128,700
HEEGERER
2,239 2,239
AARMAAEE 253,614 1,048,702
BEE 4,548,963 6,095,236
PREE - - 57,905 71518 - - 57905 71518
AARNDABE 521,067 481,882
BefE 578,972 553,400
EAREY 167 = 308 1,331 104 3,488 669 4,819
RERES 278 358 867 120 19,068 10,931 20,218 11,409
EBRRETERN
REEX
- = 960 = - 13728 90 13,728
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32. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 32. pEER (&)
(b) Geographical segments (b) EHEHDE
Most of the activities of the Group are based in REBBABLEBKHES
Hong Kong from where (i) it derives more than 90% BEAE ()% 790% 2 Y A H
of its revenues and operating results; and (i) most BB RBEE R()KE
of its segment assets and capital expenditures are MR BEERERNES N
located in Hong Kong. TENBSB-

33. BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. WRITEREEREEER
Aggregate banking facilities of the Group as at 31st AEBR_ZEE_F+_A=1+—
December 2002 amounted to approximately BZ2RITERBEEHNRAEE
HK$630,000,000 (2001: approximately HK$1,721,971,000) 630,000,0007T (ZZF T —F : 475 #&
of which the unused facilities as at the same date amounted 1,721,971,0007T) A RBRAZ
to approximately HK$590,000,000 (2001: approximately B EEE 4 /% %590,000,0007T
HK$1,721,816,000). These facilities were secured by certain (_fi—i #) 75 #1,721,816,000
non-trading securities held by the Group and corporate ) REEFRBEEHAEERFEZ
guarantees of the Company. IERGHEHEBIBRANR B EER -

34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 4. HEHEE
The accounts for the year ended 31st December 2001 were T -FHREC AR KE
audited by certified public accountants other than SEMESMNZBEANR _EZT =
PricewaterhouseCoopers whose report dated 27th March FZAZ+ AP AEREERD
2002 expressed an unqualified opinion on those accounts. Z SRR o
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to reflect REPBRWBEHETEF S EUAR
(i) the change in the accounting treatment for trust accounts B () SRR SRt RE AR E (R
(see note 2(k)) and (i) the reclassification of amounts due M¢§I2( )) R (ii) % FE ) BfY B & =) & Bk
to subsidiaries and associates from non-current assets to ERNRIRIERIERDEEENEA
current liabilities. ﬁ@JE{a ®

35. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS 35. ERE#E

The accounts on pages 41 to 107 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 23rd April 2003.
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